
APOLOGIES Committee Services
Tel. 01621 876232

Council Chamber 01621 859677
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE’S OFFICE
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE
Richard Holmes

30 January 2019

Dear Councillor

You are summoned to attend the meeting of the;

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

on THURSDAY 7 FEBRUARY 2019 at 3.00 pm.

in the Council Chamber. Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

Head of Paid Service

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP CHAIRMAN Councillor P G L Elliott

VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor E L Bamford

COUNCILLORS A S Fluker
B E Harker
M S Heard
Miss M R Lewis
A K M St. Joseph
Mrs M E Thompson

Please note: Limited hard copies of this agenda and its related papers will be available at the meeting. 
Electronic copies are available via the Council’s website.

Unrestricted Document Pack



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



Page 3
For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk.

AGENDA
AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 7 FEBRUARY 2019
1. Chairman's notices (please see overleaf)  

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 5 - 8)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 6 December 
2018, (copy enclosed).

4. Disclosure of Interest  

To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 
Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6-8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for Members.

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).

5. Performance Against 2018/19 Internal Audit Report  (Pages 9 - 30)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

6. Internal Audit - Follow Up of Recommendations  (Pages 31 - 38)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

7. External Audit - Grant Claim Certification: Year Ended 31 March 2018  (Pages 
39 - 48)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

8. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 
urgent  

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


Page 4

NOTICES

Sound Recording of Meeting
Please note that the Council will be recording any part of this meeting held in open session 
for subsequent publication on the Council’s website.  At the start of the meeting an 
announcement will be made about the sound recording.  Members of the public attending the 
meeting with a view to speaking are deemed to be giving permission to be included in the 
recording.  

Fire
In event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green running 
man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  Please 
gather there and await further instruction.

Health and Safety
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.  There are 
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room.   

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV)
This meeting is being monitored and recorded by CCTV.



869

MINUTES of
AUDIT COMMITTEE
6 DECEMBER 2018

PRESENT

Chairman Councillor P G L Elliott

Vice-Chairman Councillor E L Bamford

Councillors A S Fluker, M S Heard, Miss M R Lewis, A K M St. Joseph 
and Mrs M E Thompson

Substitute 
Councillor(s)

Councillor S J Savage

682. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman drew attention to the list of notices published on the back of the agenda.

683. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor B E Harker. In accordance with 
Procedure Rule 17 (9,10) Councillor S J Savage attended as a substitute for Councillor 
B E Harker.

684. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 27 September 
2018 were approved and confirmed.

685. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

There were none.

686. PERFORMANCE AGAINST 2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources, together with 
Appendix 1, detailing progress to date with regard to work completed and any deviances 
to, or slippage, on the Internal Audit Plan 2018 / 19. 

Mr Greg Rubins, Head of Internal Audit, introduced himself and updated the Committee 
on the status of the audit reports. He said that progress had been made but that despite 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



870

best endeavours the final audits on Budgets and Performance Management, Safe and 
Clean Environment and Main Financial Systems were not available for this meeting and 
would be presented next time round. However, he assured the Committee that the final 
reports were positive, there was nothing to concern the Committee regarding the 
findings and he was confident that all reports would be completed by year end. 

RESOLVED that the Committee noted the progress against the 2018/19 Internal Audit 
Plan.

687. INTERNAL AUDIT - FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS AS AT 31 
OCTOBER 2018 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources, together with 
Appendix 1, detailing progress on recommendations raised by Internal Audit for the 
years 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18. 

Mr Greg Rubins, Head of Internal Audit, presented the report to the Committee. He 
reported that he was very pleased with progress to date and Officers’ response rates. 
The majority of recommendations were on track and those relating to the 
recommendation Channel shift would be dealt with separately, as part of the ‘Future 
Council Model’. He was confident that all would be signed off next time round.  

A question was raised regarding completion dates and it was agreed that it was 
incumbent on all involved to be more realistic going forwards when setting 
implementation dates.

RESOLVED that the Committee noted the progress to date.

688. QUARTERLY REVIEW OF  CORPORATE RISK 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources, together with 
Appendix 1, providing independent assurance to the Council on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework.  It was noted that the Risk Management Policy required this 
Committee to undertake a quarterly review of the Corporate Risk Register as assurance 
that the corporate risks are being managed effectively.

The Director of Resources introduced the report advising the Committee that it provided 
an update on the position as at the end of Quarter 2 (30 September 2018) on the 
corporate risks included within the Corporate Risk Register 2018/19.  

In response to a query regarding the risk score and how it’s assessed it was noted that 
where plans are still on hold the risk remains static and where significant progress has 
taken place the risk score will reduce.

A brief discussion ensued regarding the static nature of the score and comment under 
Risk 14 – Unable to recruit and retain staff in a national skill shortage area to meet the 
demands of the service – and whether this was down to a freeze on recruitment.  It was 
clarified that this referred to difficulties recruiting Planning Officers and that the issue 
was now resolved. The Committee agreed that both the comment and score be revised 
accordingly.

Page 6



871

In response to a query on Risk 6 the Director of Resources confirmed that this was a 
‘corporate’ risk, not district-wide and that the title would be revised to reflect this.

RESOLVED 

(i) that Members reviewed the information as set out in this report and Appendix 1 
to the report and their views and comments were sought,  

(ii) that in undertaking this review Members were assured that corporate risk is 
being managed effectively.

689. ACTION PLAN OF FLOOD MITIGATION PROJECTS ACROSS THE 
DISTRICT 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance that provided Members with an amended action plan at Appendix 1 as 
agreed at this Committee on the 26 July 2018.  The amendments aimed to clearly detail 
the various flood management projects being undertaken across the District, in 
conjunction with partners, and to clarify the purpose of the group and the goals it aims 
to achieve.  

The Environmental Health Manager, presenting the report advised the Committee that 
the revised action plan would assist when reviewing the current risk score for corporate 
risk 6 “Failure to have a clear shared plan regarding strategic ownership of coastal, 
fluvial and surface water flooding mitigation and long term maintenance 
responsibilities”.

She then took Members through the preamble, amendments and additions to the 
appendix since the last Committee, work achieved through partnership working. It was 
noted that there was still some feedback outstanding and it was difficult managing the 
various grant allocation for projects as Maldon District Council was not the ‘gatekeeper’ 
for this work. However, overall, this was a work in progress and the partners were 
engaging with Maldon District Council, in particular the Environment Agency. 
Furthermore the Council had taken the lead on a number of flood defence projects.

It was recognised that, maintenance aside, it was imperative to focus on the key risks, 
major projects and improvement of flood defences, in particular safeguarding the 
railway line to Southminster and the Causeway area. The Committee acknowledged that 
working alongside landowners, Essex County Council, other agencies and Network Rail 
will be crucial going forward to tackle the aforementioned issues. 

It was agreed that the Action Plan at Appendix 1 to the report, updated on a six month 
basis, was a very useful way of monitoring the situation as it mapped all the issues 
pertaining to corporate risk. It was further agreed that the risk score for this corporate 
risk remain at 16.

The Chairman and Committee Members thanked the Environmental Health Manager for 
all her hard work in compiling the action plan. 

Page 7



872

RESOLVED that Members had noted the amendments to the action plan provided in 
Appendix 1 to the report and reviewed the current risk score as a result of the 
amendments. 

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 4.06 pm.

P G L ELLIOTT
CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Agenda Item no.5 
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
AUDIT
7 FEBRUARY 2019

PERFORMANCE AGAINST 2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To report progress to date with regard to work completed and any deviances to, or 
slippage, on the Internal Audit Plan 2018 / 19. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

(i) That the progress against the 2018 / 19 Internal Audit Plan is noted

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 Details of the progress to date against the 2018 / 19 Internal Audit Plan are attached at 
APPENDIX 1 to this report.

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 This report updates Audit Committee Members on the progress against the 2018 / 19 
Internal Audit Plan.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 The report links to the Maldon District Council goal of ‘Delivering good quality, cost 
effective and valued services’.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – None

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None

(iii) Impact on Risk – None

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – None

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item no. 5

Background Papers: None

Enquiries to: Emma Foy, Director of Resources, (Tel: 01621 875762) or 
Emma Donnelly, Assistant Manager, (BDO LLP) 

Page 10



    

 

 APPENDIX 1 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

FEBRUARY 2019 

Page 11



 
 

 
2 

 

   

 

 Page 

Summary of 2018/19 Work 3 

Review of 2018/19 Work 4 

Appendix A- Executive Summary - Main Financial 
Systems 

5 

Appendix B- Executive Summary – Budgets & 
Performance Management 

8 

Appendix C- Executive Summary- Safe & Clean 
Environment 

 

Appendix D- Definitions  12 

  

CONTENTS 

 

Page 12



 
 

3 
 

 

 

Internal Audit  

This report is intended to inform the Audit Committee of progress made against the 2018/19 
internal audit plan. It summarises the work we have done, together with our assessment of the 
systems reviewed and the recommendations we have raised. Our work complies with Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. As part of our audit approach, we have agreed terms of reference for 
each piece of work with the risk owner, identifying the headline and sub-risks, which have been 
covered as part of the assignment. This approach is designed to enable us to give assurance on the 
risk management and internal control processes in place to mitigate the risks identified.  

 

Internal Audit Methodology 

Our methodology is based on four assurance levels in respect of our overall conclusion as to the 
design and operational effectiveness of controls within the system reviewed.  The assurance levels 
are set out in Appendix 1 of this report, and are based on us giving either "substantial", "moderate", 
"limited" or "no".  The four assurance levels are designed to ensure that the opinion given does not 
gravitate to a "satisfactory" or middle band grading. Under any system we are required to make a 
judgement when making our overall assessment.   

 

2017/18 

We have one piece of work outstanding from 2017/18 which is a fraud risk assessment. This is 
currently underway. 

 

2018/19 Internal Audit Plan  

The following audits have been issued in final since the last audit committee: 

 Budgets and Performance Management  

 Main Financial Systems 

 Safe and Clean Environment 

 

Reports for this Audit Committee 

 Follow Up of Internal Audit Recommendations 

  

SUMMARY OF 2018/19 WORK 

 

Page 13



 
 

4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Area Audit 
Days 

Planning Fieldwork  Reporting Opinion 
Design    Effectiveness 

 

Audit 1. Main 

Financial Systems 
30 

  

February 

2019 AC Substantial Moderate 

Audit 2. 
Transformation 

Programme 

15  
 

March 

2019 AC M  

Audit 3. Budgets 
and Performance 

Management 

15  
 

February 

2019 AC Moderate Moderate 

Audit 4. Capital 
project 

management 

20 
  

March 

2019 AC   

Audit 5. Counter 

Fraud 
10   

March 

2019 AC   

Audit 6. Building 

Control 
15  Q4 TBC 

  

Audit 7. Local 

Development Plan 
15 

 Q4 

March 

2019 AC   

Audit 8. Safe & 

Clean Environment 
20 

  

February 

2019 AC 
Moderate 
 

Moderate 
 

Audit 9. 
Strengthening 
Communities 
Strategy and 
Localism 

15 
 Q4 TBC   

Audit 10. IT 
Transformation 

15 
  TBC   

Audit 11. 
Commercialisation 

15 
  TBC   

REVIEW OF 2018/19 WORK 

 

Page 14



 
 

5 
 

APPENDIX A- MAIN FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design Substantial 
There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve system 
objectives. 

Effectiveness Moderate 
Evidence of non compliance with some controls, that may put some of 
the system objectives at risk.  

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

High   0 
        

Medium  1 
        

Low  1 
        

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 1 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The main financial systems are managed by the Finance Team (within the Resources 
Directorate) and the Revenues and Benefits Team (within the Customers and Community 
Directorate). The Finance Team also provides leadership on good financial practice to services 
across the Council and has an oversight role to ensure that procedures are correctly followed. 
Local authorities are facing financial strain and reduced grant funding, therefore proper and 
effective financial system controls are critical to support effective financial planning and 
management. Detailed independent testing on the Financial Statements is also performed by 
External Auditors in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Internal Audit processes seek 
to minimise duplication between the different audit roles. 
The Council is required to ensure that there are sufficient and effective controls over the main 
financial systems to prevent any accidental or intentional misappropriation of resources. The 
Council’s main financial systems are subject to cyclical review. As no significant control 
deficiencies were identified in our prior year audits, the 2018/19 audit wasan overall review of 
key controls over the main financial system of the Council. 
The purpose of this review was to provide assurance over the design and effectiveness of the 
controls in place around the Main Financial Systems, specifically, the payroll, general ledger, 
accounts payable and accounts receivable areas. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 
 

6 
 

GOOD PRACTICE: 

 A sample of five starters, five leavers and five amendments to contracts selected 
from 1 April 2018 to 30 September 2018 were processed correctly and supported by 
signed documents in the respective personnel files 

 A sample of five overtime and five expense claims selected from 1 April 2018 to 30 
September 2018 are supported with claim forms signed by the claimant and 
authorised for payment by an appropriate approver 

 Expenditure on agency staff is raised through the purchasing system, by raising a 
purchase order for approval from the Director of Resources 

 Tax and National Insurance Parameters in the payroll system are automatically 
uploaded through a system update prior to the start of the tax year 

 A sample of 15 income transactions were selected and traced back to invoices and 
invoice requisition forms. Invoices are raised promptly for all income due and are 
posted to the correct customer accounts 

 The Council monitor aged debtors by running an aged debt report and sending to 
Service Managers and the Finance Manager. We reviewed the monthly aged debtor 
management information reports for the three months June, July, August 2018 to 
ensure these have been produced and distributed for management review and 
consideration 

 Write off’s are approved, reviewed and authorised by the Director of Resources as per 
the Sundry Debtors policy. There were four write off’s, from  the 1st April 2018 to 
date, all of which  had followed this approval process 

 We selected a sample of 15 purchases made in the financial year to 30 October 2018 
and verified orders were raised by an appropriate officer and approval sought where 
the order was in excess of the approval limit 

 A sample of five credit card purchases selected from 1 April 2018 to 30 September 
2018 were reviewed. Receipts for the transactions were retained and a valid credit 
card set-up form is in place for each of the card holders  

 Reconciliations of key balance sheet accounts are prepared and reviewed on a regular 
basis. We reviewed five reconciliations, namely, the Bank Income General Account, 
Payroll, Grants, Ledger and Payment Account for the financial year up to and 
including September 2018 

 Access to the general ledger system is managed and data may not be amended or 
deleted without appropriate approval from personnel with delegated authority 

 The general ledger suspense account is subject to monthly review and timely 
clearance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 
 

7 
 

KEY FINDINGS: 

 One Journal only had one signature and no backing documentation to justify the 
journal – Low, Finding 1 

 

CONCLUSION: 

Overall, we are able to provide substantial assurance over the design and moderate 
assurance on the effectiveness of the controls the Council have in place for the three areas 
of this review, Payroll, Debtors and Creditors. We have raised one low level recommendation 
for the Council to note. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN 

Ref Recommendation Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Implementation 
date 

 

1 

 
Ensure all staff processing journals 
to include all the backing 
information relevant to the journal 
being posted. Remind staff to seek 
signed approval before a journal is 
posted. 

 

Agreed 

 

 

Carrie Cox- 
Finance Manager 

 

 

30 November 
2018 

Page 17



 
 

8 
 

APPENDIX B- BUDGETS & PERFORMANCE 

MANAGEMENT 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design Moderate 
Generally a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 
system objectives with some exceptions. 

Effectiveness Moderate 
Evidence of non compliance with some controls, that may put some of 
the system objectives at risk.  

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

High   0 
        

Medium  1 
        

Low  3 
        

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 4 

 

GOOD PRACTICE: 

For four of the five budgets reviewed, the most current information available was used in 
budget setting 
 With the exception of the Members’ allowances budget, budget monitoring was undertaken 

regularly, with both fixed and ad-hoc meetings should issues arise during the month, with 
detailed budget monitoring reports outlining the budget versus actual expenditure, as well as a 
proportion of the spend for the year to identify any variances 

  Annual outturn reports are produced and reported to the Finance and Corporate 
Services Committee 

 

BACKGROUND: 

A report to the Council’s Finance & Corporate Services Committee in September 2018 advised 
Members that a review of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy had identified that an 
estimated £466,000 of savings would be required to close the budget gap in 2018/19, with further 
savings of £1,242,000 and £322,000 being required in the subsequent two years respectively.  
The Finance & Corporate Services Committee was asked to adopt a series of principles for 
2019/20. This included, but was not limited to, no additional budget growth (including one-offs 
growths), the principle of zero based budgeting applying for the 2019/20 budgets onwards and 
centralisation of all support services.  
From a review of the budgets over £10,000 as at the end of quarter two, the Council had a 
profiled spend for the first two quarters of £3,198,232, compared with an actual spend of 
£2,886,859, meaning they are currently delivering under budget with a variance of £311,373.  
 

Page 18



 
 

9 
 

KEY FINDINGS: 

 The budget setting process was not documented 

 Inflation rates were used which did not align with the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and the reasons for the deviation was not recorded 

 National Insurance Contributions were erroneously omitted from the Members’ 
allowances budget 

 For the sale of recyclables excluding glass, up to date information was not used for the 
income budget and a financial report was not generated for committees due to a lack of 
communication between the budget holder and accountant. 

CONCLUSION: 

On the whole there adequate processes in place relating to budget setting and monitoring, 
including the use of the most current information, however exceptions were identified relating 
to individual budgets. The root cause of these issues appeared to be a lack of communication 
between the budget holders and accountants, resulting in the accountants being unaware of 
more current information to be used and errors not being identified and corrected before 
approval. Formalising the budget setting arrangements, including clarifying the expectations of 
the accountant and budget holder, should assist in rectifying these issues.  

Additionally, there was a lack of consistency between the inflation rates used for setting the 
budget and the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

 

MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN 

Ref Recommendation Management Response Responsible Officer Implementation 
date 

1 
The CPI rates used in the budget 

setting process should correlate 

with the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy. If at the time of budget 

setting it is felt that this rate does 

not reflect the current market and 

a revised rate is needed, the 

assumptions and rationale should 

be documented and independently 

agreed. The Council should also 

consider including the RPIX rate in 

the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy, or as a minimum, 

document any judgemental 

assumptions used in calculating the 

RPIX rate used in budget setting, 

the rationale for the assumption 

used, evidence of an independent 

review and authorisation that the 

rate is appropriate.  

b) Budget holders and Lead 

Accountants should work closely to 

determine the information which is 

available to both teams to allow 

the Finance Team to incorporate 

this information into the budget 

setting timetable. This will confirm 

Agreed 

 

Carrie Cox- 
Finance Manager 

 

28 February 2019 

Page 19



 
 

10 
 

that the most up to date 

information is being used when the 

budget is being set, and therefore 

increases the accuracy of the 

budget setting process. If 

information becomes known after 

the budget setting process, but 

prior to the commencement of the 

financial year, it should be 

quantified and communicated to 

Members at the earliest 

opportunity.  

Recommendations a and b should 

also feed in to the guidance, as per 

recommendation 3.  

 

2 a) The Members’ allowances 
budget should be incorporated 
into the salaries budget setting 
process to ensure all elements of 
the budget, such as inflation and 
national insurance contributions, 
are captured within the budget. 

b) A budget holder should be 
allocated to the Members’ 
allowances budget and a suitable 
threshold set which determines if 
there has been a significant 
variance against the budget. 
Budget monitoring meetings 
should be held on a sufficiently 
regular basis to allow for 
variances to be identified whilst 
balancing the reduced variability 
that would be expected, to ensure 
the benefits outweigh the time 
spent. 

c) The budget to be agreed by the 
budget holder should provide a 
line by line breakdown compared 
to the previous budget to ensure 
no lines are omitted in error. This 
should feed in to recommendation 
1b regarding the need for 
increased communication between 
the accountants and budget 
holders to avoid omissions going 
unidentified. 

Agreed 

 

Ann Nagy- Senior 
Accountant 

 

28 February 2019 

3 Management should determine the 
service areas where it needs to obtain 
an individual’s explicit consent for the 
personal identifiable information to 
be collected. 

Furthermore, the consent form and 

Agreed 

 

Carrie Cox- 
Finance Manager 

 

28 February 2019 

Page 20



 
 

11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

procedure documents should be 
ratified by senior management. 

 

Page 21



 
 

12 
 

APPENDIX C- SAFE & CLEAN ENIRONMENT 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design Moderate 
Generally a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 
system objectives with some exceptions. 

Effectiveness Moderate 
Evidence of non compliance with some controls, that may put some of 
the system objectives at risk.  

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

High   0 
        

Medium  5 
        

Low  1 
        

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 6 

 

GOOD PRACTICE: 

      Contract monitoring meetings were held for the Suez contract and there was a KPI in 
place to measure the number of missed bins 

 Invoices were authorised in line with the procurement code 

 Air pollution was monitored monthly by the Environmental Health Team through a 
review of the nitrogen dioxide levels 

 There was evidence of review of the payments made to Suez, with supporting 
information for variable elements such as the number of occupied properties 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Council has in place an outsourced waste management contract with the contractor Suez. This 
was awarded in 2015 following a full procurement exercise. This contract provides the Council 
with refuse and recycling including food waste and bulk collections. The service is paid for based 
on fixed and variable elements linked with a number of factors, including the number of occupied 
properties and the number of residents who have bought into the food waste service. The contract 
price is inflated on an annual basis based upon the rate of CPI at given dates and currently stands 
at circa £2m. 
Street cleaning is also outsourced to an external contractor, Appleton Contracts, whom have 
responsibility for keeping the district clean e.g. litter picking, emptying bins, street sweeping, and 
managing fly tipping. The arrangement with this contractor has been in place for approximately 30 
years, with the current version of the contract being in place since 2012 with an initial term of 
eight years and the option to extend to a maximum of 22 years. The Council are the only client of 
Appletons Contracts. This contract initially had an annual value of £391,500, and has been inflated 
annually in line with RPIX inflation rates. 
 

Page 22



 
 

13 
 

KEY FINDINGS: 

 An environmental strategy was not in place to detail the council’s aims in relation to the 
environment, including pollution and waste, and how they hope to achieve this in the 
medium to long term (Finding 2- Medium) 

 Contract monitoring meetings for the Suez contract were not held on a regular basis or 
consistently documented, and action plans had not been raised to address poor 
performance (Finding 3 – Medium) 

 Contract performance monitoring was not in place for the Appletons contact and there 
were no KPIs in place for the Appletons contract (Finding 4- Medium) 

 There were inadequate checks undertaken of the values paid to Appletons for contract 
variations (Finding 1- Medium) 

 There was no evidence of review of the locations of air tubes or an action plan relating 
to improving general air quality (Finding 5- Medium) 

 A record was not retained to evidence the inflated contract price to be paid to Suez and 
used for confirming the accuracy of the invoice prior to payment (Finding 6 – Low) 

ADDED VALUE 

We have undertaken a benchmarking exercise of the council’s waste management 
performance against similar councils (See Appendices I and II) 

 

CONCLUSION: 

Overall, weaknesses were identified in all areas of the control framework, in particular relating 
to the Appleton contract. These weaknesses included both a lack of review over the payments 
made to the contractor and monitoring of the contract not being undertaken. 
 
The controls relating to the Suez contract appeared stronger, however there still remained 
insufficient confirmation over the contract price being paid and there was a lack of compliance 
in terms of the monitoring being undertaken and how this was documented.  
 
Air pollution monitoring was found to be in place, however this could be improved through 
increased documentation relating to reviews of the air tube locations and the actions being 
implemented. The Council also does not have an environment strategy in place which would 
underpin how the Council reacts to and monitors environmental issues, including waste 
management and air pollution. While we have identified a number of deficiencies in the control 
framework the potential for significant error is small and the contracts appear to be working 
well in practice. We have therefore concluded on moderate assurance for both control design 
and operational effectiveness 

 

MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN 

Ref Recommendation Management Response Responsible Officer Implementation 
date 

1 
A review of all variations charged 

should be undertaken to verify 

whether these are correct in terms 

of the service being received and in 

line with the contract prices, after 

adjusting for inflation.  

Once this has been confirmed, a 

record should be maintained of all 

variations, when they were 

The error on the contract 
price has been identified 
and the council officer’s 
are looking to resolve the 
issue. 

All variations have been 
reviewed and a record is 
now available. Variations 
are reconciled against 
invoice prior to payment 

Carol Love – Waste 
and Street Scene 
Manager 

 
 

 

Complete 

Page 23



 
 

14 
 

initiated from and the cost of the 

variation. This should be an ongoing 

record with evidence of the annual 

inflation uplifts. When the annual 

inflation rate to be used is 

determined, this should be added 

to the record to recalculate the 

new cost of the variances. This 

record should be reconciled against 

the invoice prior to being paid. 

For any additional variations, the 

Senior Community Protection 

Officer should ensure the Waste 

Administrator is copied in to the 

issuing of the contract variation 

notice to ensure effective oversight 

and a segregation of duties in the 

variation process. 

b) The thresholds for agreeing 

contract variations should be 

agreed and documented. 

c) The Council should retain their 

calculations of the invoice value 

adjusted for inflation to enable a 

comparison of this against the 

contract price being invoiced to 

evidence the correct payments are 

being made. 

 

by Waste Manager.  

All recommendations have 
been implemented  
 

 

2 The Council should create an 
environmental and waste 
management strategy of their 
own. This could incorporate the 
Inter-Authority Agreement, 
however should have a wider view 
of environmental management as 
a whole.  

This strategy should outline what 
the Council would like to achieve 
in the medium to long term in 
regards to the environment, with 
specific targets and actions to 
assist in implementing the 
strategy, as well as an 
intermittent review to ensure the 
Council is working towards 
implementing the strategy. 

An Environmental Strategy 
has been identified as a 
priority for the new 
Director of Strategy 
Performance & 
Governance to be 
completed in 2019, this 
will include the current 
Inter Authority Agreement 
on waste management.  
 

 

Director of 
Strategy 
Performance & 
Governance  
 

 

 

2019/2020 

3 Performance monitoring should be 
evidenced as undertaken on a set 
periodic basis, with any performance 
discussion minuted. If performance 
targets are not being met, and 
rectification notices are being issued, 

Performance monitoring 
meetings are now minuted 
and action points noted. 
Performance is discussed 
at regular contract 
monitoring meetings. 

Carol Love – Waste 
and Street Scene 
Manager 
 

 

31 January 2019 

Page 24



 
 

15 
 

the contractor should be asked to 
provide a response for the reason for 
the missed targets. An action plan 
should be created to record the 
actions that need to be taken by both 
the Council and the contractor, Suez, 
who is responsible for implementing 
each action and the timeframes for 
this. The action plan should be 
presented at every contract 
monitoring meeting so it can be 
updated with the actions addressed. 

b) A review of performance targets 
should be undertaken. If the current 
target for missed bins is not feasible, 
an additional target should be created 
above which performance would be 
deemed unsatisfactory. Other key 
performance indicators should be 
considered to identify if these would 
assist in the monitoring of 
performance, based upon 
management knowledge of the service 
and contract. Based upon our 
experience at other Councils, we have 
found the following indicators 
commonly used: 

- Number of customer complaints 

- Turnaround time at delivery points 

- Vehicle breakdowns 

- Number of delayed collections 

- Timeliness of container deliveries 

Action plans, as 
recommended, are being 
implemented  in January 
2019.  

Other performance 
indicators as outlined 
above have been 
considered and 
implemented as 
appropriate.    

 

A revised target for 
missed bins is to be 
discussed and agreed with 
Senior Managers.  
 

 

4 The Council should work with the 
contractor to determine the 
monitoring and performance targets 
to be implemented which are 
commensurate with the risk and value 
of the contract. Monitoring should 
then be undertaken on a set periodic 
basis, with monitoring reports 
provided by the contractor to enable 
an assessment of performance against 
predetermined targets. Any 
performance below target should 
result is an action plan being put in 
place by the contractor to enable 
them to meet the Council’s 
expectations. 

This contract is currently 
considered to be a low 
risk by the council, this is 
evidenced by the lack of 
complaints by the public 
and parish councils also 
the Community Protection 
Officers visually monitor 
the district on a daily 
basis. If the levels of 
cleanliness of the district 
should begin to drop then 
resources will be applied 
to monitoring and 
maintaining standards. 

 

Appletons have carried 
out the Street Cleansing 
service for many years 
and the level of 
performance during that 
time has been 
consistently high.  All 
flytipping and complaints 
are dealt with quickly and 
within expected 

Carol Love – Waste 
and Street Scene 
Manager 

Completed 

Page 25



 
 

16 
 

timescales.  Although no 
programmed monitoring is 
currently undertaken due 
to resources it is 
recognised that this 
should be implemented 
and this is included in this 
year’s Business Plan. 

5 The Council should coordinate the 
work of Environment Services and the 
Health and Wellbeing teams to 
develop measures that will positively 
impact on air quality, including the 
‘soft measures’ the Council has 
already been implementing. These 
measures should have   a responsible 
officer, implementation date and 
detail the outcome they are hoping 
this action would achieve. These 
should be reviewed on a regular basis 
(we would suggest quarterly as a 
minimum) to identify whether 
progress has been made to implement 
these actions and whether they are 
effective. 

b) A formal review should be 
undertaken of the tube locations to 
determine whether these are in 
effective and suitable locations. This 
review should combine both local 
knowledge and the results from the 
air tube monitoring. This review 
should be undertaken on a fixed 
periodic basis 

Agreed. 
Environmental 
Health Manager 

Complete. 

6 The Council should undertake their 
own calculation of the contract price 
and retain this for review against the 
contract price listed on the invoice. 

Agreed. A separate 
calculation will be kept in 
the future. 

All statements regarding 
payment due to the waste 
contractor are rigorously 
checked prior to the 
invoice being generated, 
checks include:  

 Unit prices per 
household are 
checked against 
number of 
properties 

 The number of 
bulky waste 
collections 
undertaken 
checked against 
CORE system 

 Tonnage of 
material checked 
against 
summaries from 

Carol Love – Waste 
and Street Scene 
Manager 

Complete. 

Page 26



 
 

17 
 

 

 

 

 

  

sub-contractors 

 Monthly report 
on garden waste 
customers is 
generated and 
checked against 
invoice  

 Any 
discrepancies are 
raised with the 
contractor and 
an invoice is not 
generated by 
Suez until 
resolved.  

 

The value of the invoice 
will vary on a monthly 
basis due to the above 
varying factors. Unit 
prices are agreed on an 
annual basis using the 
uplift of CPI. Going 
forward this will be 
documented as identified 
in the Recommendations.  

 

 

Page 27



 
 

18 
 

 

 

 

Level of 
Assurance 

Design Opinion Findings from review Effectiveness Opinion  Findings from review 

Substantial Appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to  
mitigate the key  
risks.  

There is a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives.  

No, or only minor,   
exceptions found in   
testing of the 
procedures  and 
controls.  

The controls that are 
in place are being 
consistently applied.  

Moderate In the main, there are 
appropriate  
procedures and  
controls in place to  
mitigate the key risks  
reviewed albeit with  
some that are not  
fully effective.  

Generally a sound   
system of internal   
control designed to   
achieve system   
objectives with some  
exceptions.  

A small number of 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls.  

Evidence of non 
compliance with some 
controls, that may put 
some of the system 
objectives at risk.   

Limited A number of significant 
gaps identified in the 
procedures and  
controls in key areas.   
Where practical, 
efforts should be made 
to address in-  
year.  

System of internal  
controls is weakened 
with system objectives 
at risk of not being  
achieved.  

A number of 
reoccurring exceptions 
found in testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. Where  
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-  
year.  

Non-compliance with 
key procedures and 
controls places the  
system objectives at 
risk.  

No For all risk areas  
there are significant 
gaps in the  
procedures and  
controls. Failure to  
address in-year  
affects the quality of  
the organisation’s  
overall internal  
control framework.  

Poor system of internal 
control.  

Due to absence of 
effective controls and 
procedures, no 
reliance can be placed 
on their operation. 
Failure to address in-
year affects  the 
quality of the   
organisation’s overall   
internal control   
framework.  

Non compliance 
and/or  compliance 
with   
inadequate controls.  

APPENDIX D- DEFINITIONS 
OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

Audit Recommendation made 
Priority 
Level 

Manager 
Responsible 

Due Date Current Progress 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

 OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



 
 
 
 

 

 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our audit and 
are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might 
be made.  The report has been prepared solely for the management of the organisation and should not be 
quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  BDO LLP neither owes nor accepts any duty to any 
third party whether in contract or in tort and shall not be liable, in respect of any loss, damage or expense 

which is caused by their reliance on this report. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number OC305127, is a 
member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of members' names is open to inspection at 
our registered office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by the 

Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business. 

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.  

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, is licensed to 

operate within the international BDO network of independent member firms. 

Copyright ©2018 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

FOR MRE INFORMATION: 
 
EMMA DONNELLY 

Audit Manager, Public Sector 
Ext.552904 (Internal) 
020 78552904 (Direct Line) 
07923030487 (Mobile) 
 
emma.donnelly@bdo.co.uk 

 

Page 29

mailto:lucy.lloyd@bdo.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no.6 
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
AUDIT
7 FEBRUARY 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS AS AT 31 
DECEMBER 2018

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To report progress with regard to recommendations raised by Internal Audit for years 
2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

(i) That the progress against these to date be noted. 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 Details of the progress against these recommendations are attached at APPENDIX 1 
to this report.

3.2 Members should note that the six medium risk recommendations relating to the 
2016/17 Channel Shift audit are being addressed as part of Full Council 
Transformation. A specific update on these recommendations will be reported to the 
Transformation Board in January 2019 and the next Audit Committee meeting. 

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 This report updates Audit Committee Members on the progress against the Internal 
Audit Follow Up of Recommendations report as at 31 October 2018.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 The report links to the Maldon District Council goal of ‘Delivering good quality, cost 
effective and valued services’.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – None

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None

(iii) Impact on Risk – None

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – None

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item no. 6

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None

Background Papers: None

Enquiries to: Emma Foy, Director of Resources, (Tel: 01621 875762) or 
Emma Donnelly, Assistant Manager, (BDO LLP) 

Page 32



FEBRUARY 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT 
FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS

MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

APPENDIX 1

Page 33



Summary

2

Complete In Progress Not Due OverdueAudit Total 
Recs H M L

To 
follow 

up H M H M H M H M
% Complete

15/16. Risk 
Management – High 
Level Review

5 1 4 - 5 - 4 - 1 - - - - 80%

16/17. Cyber Crime 7 - 7 - 7 7 - - - - - - - 100%

16/17. Financial 
Systems 3 - 3 - 3 - 2 - - - - - 1 67%

16/17. Channel 
Shift 7 - 7 - 7 - 1 - 6 - - - - 14%

16/17. Information 
Governance 
PCI/DSS

4 1 3 - 4 - 3 1 - - - - - 75%

16/17. Planning 4 - 4 - 4 - 3 - 1 - - - - 75%

16/17. Flooding 5 -    5 - 5 - 3 - 2 - - - - 80%

16/17. Payment 
and Creditors 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - - - - - - 100%

17/18. Main 
Financial Systems 3 - 1 2 1 - 1 - - - - - - 100%

17/18. Economic 
Development/ 
Business Rate 
Growth

4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - - - - - - 100%

17/18. Partnership 
Working 3 - 1 2 1 - 1 - - - - - - 100%

17/18. Disaster 
Recovery and 
Business Continuity

6 - 5 1 5 - 1 - - - - - 4 20%

17/18. Contract 
Procurement 
Management and 
Purchasing

6 - 3 3 3 - 3 - - - - - - 100%

17/18. Attendance 
Management 2 - 1 1 1 - 1 - - - - - - 100%

17/18.  Elections 
Improvement Plan 6 - 3 3 3 - 3 - - - - - - 100%

17/18. Business 
Resilience 5 - 3 2 3 - 3 - - - - - - 100%

Total 74 2 58 14 60 7 37 1 10 - 0 - 5

Page 34



3

Introduction
We regularly follow up progress with the implementation of recommendations raised by Internal Audit 
and bi-annually we report to the Audit Committee. We request commentary by responsible officers on 
the progress towards implementation of our recommendations and for high and medium priority 
recommendations we verify the progress to source evidence and conclude either that the 
recommendation is complete or incomplete. This report represents the status of all internal audit 
recommendations as at 31st December 2018.

2015/16 Recommendations
19 high and medium priority recommendations were made in 2015/16, of which 18 were confirmed to 
have been implemented by March 2018 and previously reported. The remaining medium priority 
recommendation (Risk Management) will be implemented under the Future Council Model.

2016/17 Recommendations
For 2016/17 we raised a total of 34 high and medium priority recommendations. From this we note:

 23 recommendations have been implemented
 3 recommendations relating to Information Governance PCI/DSS (1 recommendation) and 

Flooding (2 recommendations) have revised implementation dates which are not yet due
 1 recommendation is overdue relating to Key Financial Systems
 A further 7 are overdue relating to the audits of Planning (1 recommendation) and Channel 

Shift (6 recommendations). These recommendations will be implemented under the Future 
Council Model.

2017/18 Recommendations

21 high and medium recommendations were raised in 2017/18. The current position of these 
recommendations is as follows:

• 17 (medium priority) are considered implemented relating to Economic Development, 
Partnership Working, Procurement &  Contract Procurement Management and Purchasing, 
Business Resilience and Disaster Recovery, Attendance Management, Main Financial Systems, 
Elections improvement Plan and Business Continuity

• 4 (medium priority) are in progress relating to Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity. 

Overall progress is satisfactory.

Page 35



Recommendations: OVERDUE

4

Recommendation made Priority 
Level

Manager 
Responsible Due Date Current Progress

17/18. Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery

Management should include Recovery 
Time Objectives (RTO) and Recovery Point 
Objectives (RPO) so that they align with 
the priority services mentioned within the 
Corporate Business Continuity Plan.
Based on the defined RTO and RPO, 
management should prioritise the recovery 
of the Council’s critical services and align 
all continuity and recovery plans to these 
objectives.
The criticality and priority of the Council’s 
service should be reviewed on a routine 
basis or following a significant change of 
circumstances.
Define the respective RTOs and RPOs 
according to:

• The financial impact of the loss 
of the IT service on the Council

• The reputational impact of the 
loss of the IT service

• The regulatory impact of the loss 
of the IT service

• The resources required to recover 
the service

Medium Community 
Safety Officer – 

Community 
Resilience  

(CCC),
Phillip Cowles – 

Interim ICT 
Manager

August 
2018

October 
2018

June 2019

The Council is in the 
process of replacing, 
upgrading and 
introducing new 
systems and 
infrastructure.  The 
work is scheduled to 
be completed at the 
end of June 2019.
 

Management should review and, where 
necessary, amend the IT Disaster Recovery 
Plan so that is aligned to and supports the 
Council’s business continuity 
arrangements. This should include, but is 
not be limited to:

• The RTO and RPO should be 
aligned with the Business Impact 
assessment for critical IT 
infrastructure, hardware, and 
systems

• The procedures for invoking the 
Council’s IT Disaster Recovery 
Plan

• Step by step recovery procedures 
for the recovery of critical IT 
services.

Medium Phillip Cowles – 
Interim ICT 

Manager

August 
2018

October 
2018

June 2019

As above.
 

Page 36



Recommendations: OVERDUE

5

Recommendation made Priority 
Level

Manager 
Responsible Due Date Current Progress

Management should define a Business 
Continuity Plan to include sufficient 
information to maintain continuity of 
business in the event of a business 
disruption. It should include, but not be 
limited to:
• Specific responsibilities for key 

individuals, including employees 
authorised to declare a disaster, 
specified responsibilities to restore IT, 
as well as recovery of business 
services

• Contact information for external 
service providers during disaster 
recovery and business continuity 
procedures implementation

• Recovery time objectives and 
recovery point objectives 

• Access arrangements to be 
implemented as alternate workspaces 
and business processes to be followed 
to recover normal business operation.

The Corporate Business continuity plan 
should link to the Disaster recovery plan.

Medium Community 
Safety Officer – 

Community 
Resilience  

(CCC),

September 
2018

November 
2018

As above.

An IT Disaster Recovery scenario test on 
critical infrastructure and applications 
should take place to provide assurance 
that recovery could happen within the 
expected time frame.
Management should document the testing 
results to be able to provide an audit trail 
and determine the further actions 
required to address any issues on a timely 
basis.
Management should continue to perform 
tests of its continuity and recovery plans 
on at least an annual basis.

Medium Phillip Cowles – 
Interim ICT 

Manager

August 
2018

October 
2018

June 2019

As above.

16/17. Main Financial Systems

Policies are prepared to clarify the Council 
approach to acquisition, transfer and 
maintenance of Council properties and 
assets

Medium David Rust 
Facilities and 
Asset Manager 

March 2018
31 

December 
2018

This will be discussed 
at the next AWG on 7th 
December 2018.

Page 37



6

FOR MORE INFORMATION:

Greg Rubins  
Partner
07710 703441

Emma Donnelly  
Audit Manager
07923 030487

Page 38



Agenda Item no. 7
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
AUDIT COMMITTEE
7 FEBRUARY 2019

EXTERNAL AUDIT - CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL 
REPORT 2017-18

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To inform the Committee of the External Auditors’ Grant Claim Certification for the 
year ended 31 March 2018.

2. RECOMMENDATION

(i) That the Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report for the year ended 
31 March 2018 (APPENDIX 1) be noted. 

(ii) That this report is for Members’ information only.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 Grant Claim Certification

3.1.1 The Council’s External Auditors undertake grant claim certification of the Housing 
Benefit Subsidy on behalf of the Government in accordance with Certification 
Instructions and the Statement of Responsibilities.

3.1.2 The attached report on Certification of Claims and Returns for the year ended 31 
March 2018 (APPENDIX 1) provides further details of the review and findings, 
including a summary of the status of grant claims audited, amendments made, the 
impact on subsidy, and the fee for this work.

3.1.3 The fees for the audit of the grant returns for 2017 / 18 were £13,200.  Further details 
are included within the report (APPENDIX 1).

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 The report concludes the value of the Housing Benefits Subsidy to be £14,175,648. 
This was a £8 increase to the original claim that was submitted. Details of the findings 
are at APPENDIX 1. Given the value of the grant claim and the large number of 
claims that are dealt with the issues identified through the audit are considered by the 
Customers Manager to be very minor.

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item no. 7

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 The grants audit process contributes to the Council goal of delivering good quality, 
cost effective and valued services in a transparent way. 

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – The Revenues and Benefits Service has responded 
positively to matters raised by the External Auditor in previous Grants 
Reports, thus reducing the incidents of error.

(ii) Impact on Risk – Risk of financial loss due to errors is minimised by the 
procedures and processes operated by the Council, which will need to continue 
under the Future Model. 

(iii) Impact on Equalities – None identified.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – There is budgetary provision to meet 
these fees.  

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None identified.

(vi) Impact on the Environment – No implications arising from this report.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Emma Foy, Director of Resources, (Tel: 01621 875762).

Page 40



Certification of 
claims and returns 
annual report 
2017-18
Maldon District Council

December 2018P
age 41

Berna
Typewritten Text

Berna_1
Typewritten Text

Berna_2
Typewritten Text

Berna_3
Typewritten Text

Berna_4
Typewritten Text

Berna_5
Typewritten Text

Berna_6
Typewritten Text

Berna_7
Typewritten Text

Berna_8
Typewritten Text

Berna_9
Typewritten Text

Berna_10
Typewritten Text

Berna_11
Typewritten Text

Berna_12
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1

Berna_13
Typewritten Text

Berna_14
Typewritten Text

Berna_15
Typewritten Text

Berna_16
Typewritten Text

Berna_17
Typewritten Text

Berna_18
Typewritten Text

Berna_19
Typewritten Text

Berna_20
Typewritten Text

Berna_21
Typewritten Text



2

Contents

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment (updated February 2017)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code 
of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of Maldon District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
the Audit Committee, and management of Maldon District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee, and management of Maldon District Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any 
third-party without our prior written consent.

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim01

2017-18 
certification fees

02

P
age 42

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


3

Housing benefits subsidy claim01 01

P
age 43



4

Housing benefits subsidy claim

Local Government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
towards the cost of benefits paid.

The certification guidance requires reporting accountants to complete more extensive ‘40+’ or extended testing if initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of 
benefit or compilation of the claim. 40+ testing may also be carried out as a result of errors that have been identified in the certification of previous years claims. 
We found errors and carried out extended testing in several areas. 

Extended and other testing identified errors which the Council amended. They had a small net impact on the claim, as noted above. 

We have reported underpayments, uncertainties and the extrapolated value of other errors in a qualification letter. The DWP then decides whether to ask the Council 
to carry our further work to quantify the error or to claw back the benefit subsidy paid. A summary of the main issues we reported in our qualification letter is 
included in this report:

Rent Allowance:

Initial testing identified one case where tariff income was double counted, which resulted in an underpayment of benefit of £0.46. This error will always lead to 
either an underpayment of benefit or have no impact on benefit and therefore no additional testing was required. As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit 
which has not been paid the error does not affect subsidy and has not been classified as an error for subsidy purposes. 

Eligible Overpayments: 

Initial testing did not identify any errors in classification of overpayments. However due to errors reported in the pervious year qualification letter, extended 40+ 
testing was undertaken. This identified one case where joint liability was not assessed in relation to rent liability, but had been correctly assessed for the joint 
council tax element. Consequently, the overpayment of £11.97 was incorrectly classified as claimant error rather than local authority error. The Council undertook a 
100% review of this sub-population of cases with joint liability and no further errors were identified. The claim was therefore amended for the £11.97 error 
identified.

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for certification £14,175,648

Amended/Not amended Amended – subsidy increased by £8

Qualification letter Yes

P
age 44



5

2017-18 certification fees02 01V
F
M

P
age 45



6

The PSAA determine a scale fee each year for the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. For 2017-18, these scale fees were published by the Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA’s) and are available on their website (www.psaa.co.uk).

2017-18 certification feesV
F
M

Claim or return 2017-18 2017-18 2016-17

Actual fee
£

Indicative fee
£

Actual fee
£

Housing benefits subsidy claim £13,200 £13,200 £13,283

P
age 46



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Performance Against 2018/19 Internal Audit Report
	5 Performance Against 2018-19 Internal Audit Plan - Appendix 1

	6 Internal Audit - Follow Up of Recommendations
	6 Internal Audit Follow-Up of Recommendations Report - Appendix 1

	7 External Audit - Grant Claim Certification: Year Ended 31 March 2018
	7 External Audit - Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report - 2017-18 - Appendix 1




